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. e S ©_ (for public/commercial structures)
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~ Current Owner /f s R A OF’VW"’/Z/JQ‘ £ y ot B e, o

If appllcants name is dlfferent from above

Name ) - e n : : : ,Daytimel Phone

Address . I . : - . City : State - : Zip _
Original Owner CEORG E AN TESSIE Mo TeG0ME ft;/
Date of Construction 1729

Architect (if known)
Builder (if known)

Check if attached:

- Statement Of Value -

Please review the criteria on page 5. The Elgm Hentage Commission uses s these criteiia to review your
application and award a plaque. Attach an explanauon of the historical and architectural value of the building: -
Attach photocopies of relevant. materials such as copies of Sanborn maps, orlgmalproperty deeds-and City.

" Directory listings. Apphcanons thhout these requlrements ‘will not be considered by the Elgin Hentage

Commission.-
’ /

~ [] Building Nierations- RO -

Descnbe any alterations to the exterior of the bmldmg and include dates Attach desctiption to the
appl:cauon

gl Phnluuraph

- Iniclude a recent photograph in which the bulldmg is clearly VkSlblC Addmonal photographs depicung a
dlose up and detalls of decoranve features are helpful. . ,

Stipulations

- If the building is not awarded a pIaque the apphcauon fee of $15.00 will be refunded. : Tk
. This application afid submitted materials shall be retained by the Clt_y of E]gm as a part of the permanent
record of the building.

- The Elgin Heritage Commission has the authonty to editand publish the mformauon submitted in the
~ application. This does not prohibit others from using the information.

When awarded, the plaque will remain the property of the City and cannot be altered or removed from the
_building. It is the City’ responmblhty to replace the plaque if and whén the situation warrants it :

In addition to agreeing to the above stipulations, the undemgned attests that the mformanou prowded is,
‘to the best of his/her lmow{edge decurate. ./ N

Owner’s ngnature "I. l — //xﬂ / /;/ : ; Date " i ? & ég
. Slgued 72'L & L L// )) } ///[( \ ' 7 Date /J/f ~!:ﬁ et AL ’J ﬂ;[_( {}-V
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Historical/Architectural

In the 1880's, Elgin experienced a spurt of growth-businesses in the downtown area
increased, the watch factory ticked steadily along, and the population expanded. Workers
needed places to live and Elgin's north end, north of Kimball Street and west of the
Dundee Road, was a perfect area for expansion. Residential development had started at
Kimball Street and gradually moved northward. Kimball was the unofficial dividing line
between the retail and residential areas. North Division Street (now Jefferson Avenue)
was the north city limit while its eastern limit was just east of Logan Avenue.
Geographical boundaries fell away as former farms became annexed to the city and were
sold off in pieces as residential lots.

Merritt L. Joslyn was the brother of Col. Edward Joslyn of Elgin, both coming from a
large family of Joslyns headed by Reverend A. Joslyn who died in 1868. Merritt lived in
Woodstock, Illinois and enjoyed a career in local and national politics. Around 1880,
Merritt Joslyn acquired a large, rectangular piece of property within the blocks bounded
by Spring and Lovell Streets, Prospect Boulevard, and Jefferson Avenue, naming it "M.L.
Joslyn's Addition." In 1891, several lots within the Addition were vacated to allow Center
Street to be cut through from Jefferson to Lovell.

In 1897, only eight houses were within M. L. Joslyn's Addition and faced either
Jefferson or Prospect. Although Center Street was open, no houses were built upon it
until the early 1900's when Sam Peterson's home was built at 619 Center.

Charles Rippberger was a long time real estate dealer in Elgin and Peterson was
married to his daughter, Clara. A small piece of Joslyn's Addition was subdivided by
Rippberger on the east side of Center to allow for the wedding gift house to be built. Sam
Peterson operated his father-in-law's real estate business along with Rippberger's
son,Walter, until 1925. On Christmas Eve 1925, the Rippberger Company crashed and
burned in a scandal that sent Walter to prison for 6 years.

Construction of other houses quickly followed on Center Street's east side while its
west side remained vacant. Lot 15, on the west side of Center, was carved up into
numerous pieces and these pieces owned by numerous individuals. Out of that dazzling
array of land parcels and owners, a rectangular parcel, 50 feet wide and 145 1/2 feet deep,
was sold to Jessie Montgomery in 1905. Jessie Montgomery was married to George
Montgomery who worked for the Illinois Watch Case Company on Dundee Avenue.

In 1890, a group of Elgin citizens formed the Elgin Improvement Company in an effort
to draw businesses to Elgin. Some of the those that came were the Ludlow Shoe Factory
and the Eppenstein brothers company which became the Illinois Watch Case Company.

IWC Co. was started by the Eppenstein brothers and made cases that were sold to the
watch factory, but was not part of the Watch Factory itself. Cases were solid gold, gold
filled, or gold plated; some were silver or silver plated. Decoration on the cases was done
by hand or by machine. IWC Co. also made cases for lighters and ladies' vanity cases--the
"Elgin American" brand. Mr. Montgomery came to Elgin with the company and became
its superintendent, retiring in 1927, Montgomery was also a top notch gardener, making
his home at 632 Center Street a showplace. In September 1909, George and Jessie
Montgomery executed a Trust Deed for $2,500, likely to build their home.

The 1909-10 Elgin City Directory indicates the Montgomery's living at 565 Center
Street, their home for a number of years; the 1911-12 directory lists them at 632 Center
Street. The 1913 Sanborn Map shows a one story plastered dwelling at 632 Center.



Later, small pieces of an adjoining Subdivision and Addition were added to the aforesaid
parcel to make the legal description one address compromised of three parcels.

George Montgomery died in 1945. Inventory of Jessie Montgomery's estate in mid
January 1960 included "house and lot at 632 Center Street." Several weeks later, the
property was sold to Elmer Steinmann who kept the house until 2004. The house was
then sold to Dennis Roxworthy, well known and prolific house restorationist in Elgin.

Architectural

Historic Resources in the Northeast Neighborhood: A Summary and Inventory lists
632 Center Street as a Craftsman Bungalow and contributing to the historical significance
of the area. The Lord's Park Neighborhood Historic Resources Survey states

Craftsman Bungalows were inspired by the work of the architects Greene
and Greene in Pasadena, California, from 1893 to 1914. Their work was
widely published in architectural and popular homemaking magazines of
the day. The style was offered in plan books and soon became the most
popular smaller house in the country.

Craftsman homes were popularized through architect and furniture maker Gustav
Stickley's The Craftsman magazine and were at their peak from1901 through 1916. The
popularity of Prairie style bungalows overlapped and continued beyond that of Craftsman
bungalows into the building boom of the 1920's. The distinguishing characteristic of the
Craftsman style is open rafters in the exterior eaves.

632 Center is a 1 story, stuccoed bungalow with a hipped roof containing several
hipped roof dormers. A full width front porch has arched openings. Windows are in
various sizes and are used singly or in pairs. Multi-paned windows are seen in the front
facade of the house, but it is not known if they are original to it. The house lacks the
distinguishing open rafters of the Craftsman style, but is considered a Craftsman bungalow
by way of its hipped roof and single story. An addition was made to the south facade of
the house; the garage was built in 1964.
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116 ELGIN —PAST AND PRESENT /7/7

G. E. Stahl

J. A. Schmidt

The Lithotype Company, Photo Engravers

The Lithotype Engraving Company
was organized in 1900 and has been do-
ing business at North Street and North
Grove Avenue for the past twenty-seven
years. It is the only lithotype company
in the northern part of the county and
maintains a thoroughly equipped estab-
lishment for the production of high-class
halftones, zinc etchings and color plates
of every process. It also maintains an
art department, where drawings, and

layouts in pen, wash, or color are ex-
ecuted by artists of experience and
ability. It also has a competent force
of mechanical retouchers in its service at
all times. It maintains a strictly up-to-
date modern engraving house not sur-
passed in northern Illinois for any service
coming within its scope.

The officers are J. A. Schmidt, presi-
dent; G. E. Stahl, vice-president and
secretary.
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Plant of Illinois Watch Case Co., Elgin, Illinois
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The “case factory,” nlot con-
nected with the Elgin
National Watch Co., was the
city’s second largest employ-
er for more than forty years.
The Illinois Watch Case Co.
removed from Chicago in
1890. It was one of the
industries encouraged to
locate in Elgin by William
Grote’s efforts. The cases
were of solid gold, silver,
gold-filled, and silver and
gold plated of all sizes.
Decorative work was both
hand engraved and stamped.

Besides watch cases, the
company manufactured lock-
ets, novelty jewelry, cigarette
lighters, and vanity cases.
During World War II the
firm was a major producer of

chemical mortar shells.
Output in the big plant on
Dundee avenue, hard hit by
foreign competition, ended in
the early sixties.

A press with one operation cut
and shaped the back of the
watch case from long strips of
metal. “This press is provided
with dies of every description,
size and shape; some with the
various designs which orna-
ment the back and front of the
case,” reported the Elgin
Weekly Courier, July 12, 1890.
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the Elgin City Railway Company was chartered in 1886. The cor-
poration purchased Payne's franchise for a reported $41,000 in
the summer of 1889. Pledging to lay nine miles of new track at
once, six on the east side and three on the west side, the firm se-
cured a new franchise from the City Council over vi-gorous com-
petition from Chicagoans. To power the cars, the line acquired
and expanded the Edison electric light plant and assumed re-
sponsibility for furnishing the city with light and power as well
as transportation.

Duringooonsideration of an amendment to the franchise in Feb-
ruary 1890, one alderman announced that he had been offered a
bribe in connection with the type of track to be laid. The alleged
offer was traced to a supplier of rails, and the Elgin City Railway
was free of taint. One alderman was indicted and subse_quentl.y
acquitted, but of the seven aldermen up for re-election in April
1890, four chose not to run and the other three were defeaffed._ .

On July 4, 1890—before Chicago and most other Il]inc?m cities
had them—Elgin’s first electric street cars began carrying pas-
sengers between what is now Lords Park and Fountain Square.
Within a year, the company was operating fifteen motor cars and
gix trailers over thirteen miles of track. A four-track barn built on
the west side of South Grove Avenue housed the equipment. The
cars all came down to the Square but did not cross it. Passengell-s
received transfers to another car if they wished to oontinue_ their
trip. Fares were five cents for adults and three cents for children
under twelve. i )

TThe trolley line gave Grote and his associates an additional in-

“ ducement to lure new industries, The Illinois Watch Case Com-
pany had been incorporated in 1888 as an outgrowth of a who}e-
sale jewelry firm in Chicago. The president, Max C. ‘_Eplpenstem,
agreed to move to Elgin in return for land and a building along
Dundee Avenue. In return, the firm agreed to employ at least one
hundred the first year, hire fifty more the second year, and an
additional fifty the third year. Shortly before the plant open_ed,
Grote, Church, and Waldron began selling lots in the Grand View
subdivision across the way. Its boundaries were Cooper, Cedar,
Lincoln, and Dundee avenues, Lots varied in price from $460 to
$820. ) )

The Eppenstein firm intended to change its name to the Elgin
Watch Case Company. The Elgin National Watch Company,
which did not case its movements and was wary of the .poemble
confusion, quickly moved to charter a corporation with that

128

name. Then Eppenstein countered by organizing the National
Watch Case Company of Elgin. The dispute was litigated and ul-
timately appealed to the U. S. Supreme Court, which in 1901
ruled that “Elgin” was a geographic designation which could not
be an exclusive trademark because the city existed before the ar-
rival of the watch factory. Meanwhile, the case works prospered.
Within a year of its arrival, it was employing about two hundred
fifty workers and producing about nine hundred cases daily. Be-
fore the decade was over, it had doubled its plant capacity, é

Early in 1891, Grote organized a pool of land owners in the far
northeast side to attract the Ludlow shoe factory from Chicago.
Under the aegis of the improvement association, each land owner
was given shares in the pool in proportion to the value of his
property. The Ludlow firm was given shares worth forty thou-
sand dollars for a site and building. The firm would gain a twenty
percent interest in the property for each consecutive year it em-
ployed three hundred fifty. The total amount of land in the pool
came to nearly two hundred acres. On April 4, 1891, lots in the
Riverside Park addition, carved out of this acreage, were auc-
tioned off in the largest lot sale ever staged in Elgin. Free trolley
rides were given prospective buyers to and from the sale. Many
bought lots anticipating a rise in price. The area extended north
of the Grand View subdivision from the west side of Cedar
Avenue to the north side of what is now River Bluff Road, and
east to the county line.

George W. Ludlow & Company was headed by Ludlow and his
brother-in-law, George R. Keep, and it specialized in making wo-
men’s shoes. The first pair was turned out in July, while the
plant on the northeast corner of Dundee and Congdon avenues
was still under construction. By August 1891, 370 employees were
making about nine hundred pairs daily. The firm manufactured
some three hundred different styles. Its office and sales rooms re-
mained in Chicago.

In October 1891, Grote convinced H. K. Cutter and C. H. Gros-
sette to move their shirt factory from Chicago on a promise of a
factory to be constructed on the east side of North Liberty Street
between Slade Avenue and Page Street. In return for the plant, a
three-story brick structure, Cutter and Crossette were obligated
to employ two hundred the first year and three hundred in the
ensuing four years. The shirtmakers started a temporary work-
shop to train employees until their building was ready for occu-
pancy in June 1892. Investors in the improvement association

129
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day morning and escaped with be.
tween $50 and $60 in change which
had been concealed in the building.

The burglary wgs discovered
Sunday morning by the proprietor
Merritt Phillips, and he natified
police. Lt. Robert Koch Inves-
tigated.

Entrance was
ing a rear door lch was not se-
curely fastened. After the bur-
glars had obtalned their loot, they
closed the door so that it appeared
to have been undisturbed. Phillips
told police the money was all In
change.

TRAIN CREW. SAVES CHURCH.

DECATUR, Ill.—M—A crew of
Baltimore and Ohio rallroad men,
hurrying to the scene with 3,000
gallons of water in e locomotive
tender tank, saved  the Antioch
Chrismm church four miles south-
f|east of here from destruction by ia
Iire Sunday.
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George S. Montgomery, retired
general puperiniendent of the Liki-
nois Watch Case Co. of this cit
pled urhr today at his home,
[Center st., following several years
of lnllmg htlllh He was born in
Harriston, Ontaric, Canada, on
July 23,/1838.
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the Elgin City Railway Company was chartered in 1886. The cor-
poration purchased Payne’s franchise for a reported $41,000 in
the summer of 1889. Pledging to lay nine miles of new track at
once, six on the east side and three on the west side, the firm se-
cured a new franchise from the City Council over vigorous com-
petition from Chicagoans. To power the cars, the line acquired
and expanded the Edison electric light plant and assumed re-
sponsibility for furnishing the city with light and power as well
as transportation.

During consideration of an amendment to the franchise in Feb-
ruary 1890, one alderman announced that he had been offered a
bribe in connection with the type of track to be laid. The alleged
offer was traced to a supplier of rails, and the Elgin City Railway
was free of taint. One alderman was indicted and subsequently
acquitted, but of the seven aldermen up for re-election in April
1890, four chose not to run and the other three were defeated.

On July 4, 1890—before Chicago and most other Illinois cities
had them—Elgin’s first electric street cars began carrying pas-
sengers between what is now Lords Park and Fountain Square.
Within a year, the company was operating fifteen motor cars and
six trailers over thirteen miles of track. A four-track barn built on
the west side of South Grove Avenue housed the equipment. The
cars all came down to the Square but did not cross it. Passengers
received transfers to another car if they wished to continue their
trip. Fares were five cents for adults and three cents for children
under twelve. ‘

The trolley line gave Grote and his associates an additional in-
ducement to lure new industries. The Illinois Watch Case Com-
pany had been incorporated in 1888 as an outgrowth of a whole-
sale jewelry firm in Chicago. The president, Max C. Eppenstein,
agreed to move to Elgin in return for land and a building along
Dundee Avenue. In return, the firm agreed to employ at least one
hundred the first year, hire fifty more the second year, and an
additional fifty the third year. Shortly before the plant opened,
Grote, Church, and Waldron began selling lots in the Grand View
subdivision across the way. Its boundaries were Cooper, Cedar,
Lincoln, and Dundee avenues. Lots varied in price from $460 to
$820.

The Eppenstein firm intended to change its name to the Elgin
Watch Case Company. The Elgin National Watch Company,
which did not case its movements and was wary of the possible
confusion, quickly moved to charter a corporation with that
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name. Then Eppenstein countered by org
V_Vatch Case Company of Elgin. The dispute
timately appealed to the U. S. Supreme (
ruled that “Elgin” was a geographic design:
be an exclusive trademark because the city
rival of the watch factory. Meanwhile, the ¢
Within a year of its arrival, it was employin
fifty workers and producing about nine hur
fore the decade was over, it had doubled its |

Early in 1891, Grote organized a pool of 1:

northeast side to attract the Ludlow shoe f
Under the aegis of the improvement associa’
was given shares in the pool in proportior
property. The Ludlow firm was given shar
sand dollars for a site and building. The firm
percent interest in the property for each co
ployed three hundred fifty. The total amow
came to nearly two hundred acres. On Apr
Riverside Park addition, carved out of thi
tioned off in the largest lot sale ever staged
rides were given prospective buyers to and
bought lots anticipating a rise in price. The
of the Grand View subdivision from the
Avenue to the north side of what is now R
east to the county line.

George W. Ludlow & Company was heade
brother-in-law, George R. Keep, and it speci
men'’s shoes. The first pair was turned ou
plant on the northeast corner of Dundee ai
was still under construction. By August 1891
making about nine hundred pairs daily. Th
some three hundred different styles. Its offic
mained in Chicago.

In October 1891, Grote convinced H. K. Ci
sette to move their shirt factory from Chica
factory to be constructed on the east side of |
between Slade Avenue and Page Street. In
three-story brick structure, Cutter and Cros
to employ two hundred the first year and t
ensuing four years. The shirtmakers startec
shop to train employees until their building
pancy in June 1892. Investors in the impr
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